














mailto:cs@colfaxnet.com


mailto:support@colfaxnet.com








ColfaxNet, LLC 
PO Box 1597 
Colfax, CA 95713  
530.346.8411 
cs@colfaxnet.com 

September 13, 2019 

Amy Feagans 
City of Colfax Planning Department 
33 S Main Street 
Colfax, CA 95713 

Scope of work 

Amy: 

Here is the Scope of work for the Colfax Hill tower project. 

1-Obtain building permit for replacement tower
2-Install flush-mount junction box, power meter and 3ò conduit from

existing power transformer on Sierra Sky Court for electrical service
to the tower site,

3-Order electric service from PG&E
4-Engineer tower
5-Order tower
6-Remove two dead trees and prep site for tower and equipment
7-Form tower foundation
8-Form 6ô x 6ô slab
9-Pour tower foundation and 6ô x 6ô slab for cabinet

10-Install equipment cabinet on 6ô x 6ô slab and connect electric
11-Receive and assemble tower
12-Paint tower on ground
13-Install transition Internet equipment to insure continuous service

during construction
14-Place tower on foundation
15-Paint, relocate and activate all existing equipment to replacement

tower.
16-Clean up area, work completed

Item 5A

mailto:cs@colfaxnet.com


mailto:cs@colfaxnet.com


mailto:support@colfaxnet.com


ColfaxNet, LLC 
PO Box 1597 
Colfax, CA 95713  
530.346.8411 
cs@colfaxnet.com 

June 18, 2019 

Amy Feagans 
City of Colfax Planning Department 
33 S Main Street 
Colfax, CA 95713 

Please find the information you requested in our meeting 4/20/19. 

1. PG&E application - please find the enclosed paid preliminary
invoice and various correspondence discussing installation of
power to tower site. We have located the existing conduits on the
parcel. We have met twice with the PG&E Service Planner in the
field and determined the location of the meter and future conduits.
He collected a number of pictures, drawings and notes to take
back to his office. PG&E requires an address to be issued by the
City of Colfax. On 4/23/19, we asked the Colfax Building inspector
to issue an address for the Sierra Sky parcel. We remined him on
4/30/19. The project is currently in PG&Eôs engineering
department. As soon as their engineering is completed, they will
provide design to us. Our contractor is waiting for PG&E to issue
design to bring crews and equipment on site.

2. Height of tree surveyed ï The height of the tower has been
documented. Due to the variation of ground levels in the area,
there is no one location to call the ñheightò of the tower. The
surveyor recommended that the height of the tree be documented
using various fixed locations tied together and then tied to a
Temporary Benchmark located in a place that will not be disturbed
during construction. This Temporary Benchmark will be used as a
reference point to ensure height of the tower will be the same as
the tree was before construction began. The surveyor spent a day

Item 5A

mailto:cs@colfaxnet.com


mailto:support@colfaxnet.com




































































Staff Report to City Council 

City of Colfax 1 

Staff Report September 25, 2019 Award of Contract Wastewater Treatment Plant Fencing 

FOR THE SEPTEMBER 25, 2019 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING 
From: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Prepared by: Chris J. Clardy, Community Services  Director 

Subject: Award of Contract – Wastewater Treatment Plant Fencing 
Budget Impact Overview: 

N/A:   Funded: ã Un-funded: Amount: $33,189 Fund(s):  560 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution __-2019 authorizing the City Manager to enter into 
a contract with STA-BULL Fence Company Inc. in an amount not to exceed $33,189. 

Summary/Background 

The fencing at the entrance to the Wastewater Treatment Plant is currently constructed of 

barbwire and does not adequately prevent intruders. The proposed fencing and gate will bring 

the Plant more in line with “Guidelines for Physical Security of Water/Wastewater Utilities” 

based on the USEPA Water Infrastructure Security Enhancements (WISE) Project. This Project 

was created under the U.S. Public Health Security and Bioterrorism Preparedness and Response 

Act of 2002. 

During the 2018/19 budget adoption process, City Council approved funding for the installation 
of a new entry gate and 8 foot fencing at the Wastewater Treatment Plant. This project was 
rolled over into FY 2019/20 FY.  

Staff solicited quotes from four qualified vendors of which two responded, previewed the 
project, and provided quotes.  The cost breakdowns for the two quotes are as follows: 

Contractor Gate Fence Total 

STA-BULL Fence Co. Inc. $11,200 $17,660 $28,860 

Nevada County Fence Inc. $11,879 $34,077 $45,956 

RECOMMENDATION  

Staff recommends the City Council authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with STA-
BULL Fence Company Inc. for the installation of gate and fencing at the Wastewater Treatment 





City of Colfax 1 

Resolution __-2019 Wastewater Treatment Plant Fencing 

City of Colfax 
City Council 

Resolution Ο __-2019 

 AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH 

STA-BULL FENCE COMPANY INC. IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 

$33,189 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Colfax approved capital improvements for gate and 
fencing during the 2018-2019 Fiscal Year Budget process; and, 

WHEREAS, City staff solicited quotes from four qualified vendors of which two responded, 
previewed the project, and provided quotes; and, 

WHEREAS, STA-BULL Fence Company Inc. was the lowest responsive bidder; and, 

WHEREAS, City staff recommends the City Council of the City of Colfax authorize the City 
Manager to enter into a contract with STA-BULL Fence Company for the installation of gate and 
fencing at the Wastewater Treatment Plant in an amount not to exceed $33,189. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City Council of the City of Colfax authorizes the 
City Manager to enter into a contract with STA-BULL Fence Company )ÎÃȢ in an amount not to 
exceed $33,189. 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at the 

Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 25th day of September 2019 by 

the following vote of the Council: 

AYES:  

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

_________________________________________ 

Joe Fatula, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

____________________________________ 

Jaclyn Collier, City Clerk 

























C.     If mediation is unsuccessful, before the mediation concludes, the parties shall mediate the 

selection of a neutral arbitrator to assist in the resolution of their dispute.  If the parties are 

unable to agree on an arbitrator, the parties agree to submit selection of an arbitrator to the 

mediator, whose decision shall be binding on the parties.  In that case, the mediator shall 

select a neutral arbitrator from the then active list of retired judges or justices at the 

Sacramento Office of the JAMS.  The arbitration shall be conducted pursuant to the 

provisions of the California Arbitration Act, sections 1280-1294.2 of the California Code 

of Civil Procedure.  In such case, the provisions of Code of Civil Procedure 

Section 1283.05 and 1283.1 shall apply and are hereby incorporated into this Agreement.   

 
D.     This section 18 shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement. If there is no 

Sacramento office of JAMS, then the office of JAMS closest to the City shall be used 

instead of a Sacramento office. 

 

Section 19.  Severability. 

 

The provisions of this Agreement are severable.  If any portion of this Agreement is held invalid by 

an arbitrator or by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of the Agreement shall remain in 

full force and effect unless amended or modified by the mutual written consent of the parties. 

 

Section 20.  Entire Agreement; Amendment. 

 

This Agreement, including all exhibits hereto, constitutes the complete and exclusive expression of 

the understanding and agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof.  All 

prior written and oral communications, including correspondence, drafts, memoranda, and 

representations, are superseded in total by this Agreement.  This Agreement may be amended or 

extended from time to time only by written agreement of the parties hereto. 

 

Section 21.  Time of the Essence. 

 

Time is of the essence in the performance of the Services. The Contractor will perform its Services 

with due and reasonable diligence consistent with sound professional practices and shall devote 

such time to the performance of the Services as may be necessary for their timely completion.   

 

Section 22.  Written Notification. 

 

Except as otherwise specified in this Agreement, any notice, demand, request, consent, approval or 

communications that either party desires or is required to give to the other party shall be in writing 

and either served personally or sent by first class mail, postage prepaid and addressed as follows.  

Either party may change its address by notifying the other party in writing of the change of address. 

Notice shall be deemed communicated within two business days from the time of mailing if mailed 

within the State of California as provided in this Section. 

 

 

If to City:   City of Colfax 

     33 S. Main Street 

Attachment 3



     Colfax, CA 95713 

 

If to Contractor:   STA-BULL Fence Co. Inc. 

     19080 Applejack Dr. 

     Grass Valley, CA 95949 

 

Section 23.  Execution. 

 

This Agreement may be executed in original counterparts, each of which shall constitute one and 

the same instrument and shall become binding upon the parties when at least one original 

counterpart is signed by both parties hereto.  In proving this Agreement, it shall not be necessary to 

produce or account for more than one such counterpart. 

 

Section 24. Successors.  This Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the 

respective parties hereto except to the extent of any contrary provision in this Agreement. 

 

Section 25. Attorney’s Fees.  If any party to this Agreement commences legal proceedings to 

enforce any of its terms or to recover damages for its breach, the prevailing party shall be entitled to 

recover its reasonable attorney’s fees, costs and the expenses of expert witnesses, including any 

such fees costs and expenses incurred on appeal. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby have executed this Agreement on the day first above 

written: 

 

 

CITY       CONTRACTOR 

 

Signature     Signature    

 

Printed Name     Printed Name    

 

Title       Title     

 

Date       Date     

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

       

City Attorney 

Attachment 3



Staff Report to City Council 

City of Colfax 
Staff Report September 25, 2019 

1 

SB2 Planning GrantÓ Program Funds 

FOR THE SEPTEMBER 25, 2019 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING 

From: 

Prepared by: 

Subject: 

Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Amy Feagans, Planning Director SB2 
Planning GrantÓ Program Funds 

Budget Impact Overview: 

N/A:   ã Funded: Un-funded: Amount: Fund(s): 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution No. __ - 2019 authorizing the following: 

SECTION 1.  The City Council of the City of Colfax hereby authorizes the City Manager to apply 
for, receive, and submit to the Department, the 2019 Planning Grants Program (PGP) application 
in the amount of $160,000. 

SECTION 2.  In connection with the PGP grant, if the application is approved by the 
Department, the City Manager is authorized to enter into, execute, and deliver a State of 
California Agreement (Standard Agreement) for the amount of $160,000, and any and all other 
documents required or deemed necessary or appropriate to evidence and secure the PGP grant, 
City’s obligation related thereto, and all amendments thereto (collectively, the “PGP Grant 
Documents”). 

SECTION 3.  The City shall be subject to the terms and conditions as specified in the Standard 
Agreement, the SB2 Planning Grants Program and Guidelines, and any applicable PGP guidelines 
published by the Department. Funds are to be used for allowable expenditures as specifically 
identified in the Standard Agreement. Any and all activities funded, information provided and 
timelines represented in the application will be enforceable through the executed Standard 
Agreement. The City Council hereby agrees to pursue the funds for eligible uses in the manner 
presented in the application as approved by the Department and in accordance with the 
Planning Grants NOFA, the Planning Grants Program Guidelines, and 2019 Planning Grants 
Funding Program Application. 

SECTION 4.  The City Manager is authorized to execute the City of Colfax Planning Grants 
application, the PGP Grant Documents, and any amendments thereto on behalf of the City of 
Colfax as required by Department upon receipt of the PGP Grant. 

Summary/Background 

SB2 Planning Grants Program on March 28, 2019, The California State Department of Housing and 
Community Development (HCD) released a Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) for 









 
 

 

Staff Report to City Council 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Colfax 1 

Staff Report September 25, 2019 Proposed Location for the Colfax Skate Park 
 

 

 

FOR THE SEPTEMBER 25, 2019 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING 
 

From: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Prepared by: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Subject: Proposed Location for the Colfax Skate Park 
Budget Impact Overview: 

N/A:   Õ Funded:  Un-funded: Amount:  Fund(s):  
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution __-2019 approving locating the Colfax Skate Park 

adjacent to the Splash Park. 

 

Summary/Background 

Although the area surrounding Colfax is full of outdoor recreational activities, there is not an in-town 

facility for teens to ride their skateboards or bikes in a safe manner without violating City Ordinances.  The 

Sheriff’s Deputies receive numerous complaints regarding youth hanging out downtown, skateboarding and 

bike riding on the sidewalks etc.  As a result, there has been very positive feedback and support from the 

community for a Skate Park.  Many feel a Skate Park built in the City would be beneficial to our youth and 

provide a unique attraction to our community.  A Skate Park would provide a safe environment for Colfax 

youth.  

 

Several sites have been proposed for a Skate Park and each has been found not to be feasible. After years of 

considering sites and discussing options, the site next to the Colfax Splash Park seems to be the most 

plausible place to locate the Skate Park.  It could be a great addition to the activities already offered at the 

park: ball field, playground and Splash Park.  One drawback to this location is that it is a little out of the 

way and could allow kids possibly to be more mischievous. This issue would be mitigated by extra Sheriff 

patrols, volunteer involvement, and a safety fence.  

 

Staff recommends City Council approve locating the Colfax Skate Park adjacent to the Splash Park. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT:   

The Colfax Skate Park funds will come from donations, County Parks mitigation fees, and contractor 

sponsors. 
 

Attachments 

1. Resolution __-2019 

2. Ty Conners Email Dated 9/18/2019 

3. Mammoth Lakes Skate Park Presentation 

71





mailto:TConners@placer.ca.gov
mailto:Wes.Heathcock@colfax-ca.gov
mailto:TConners@placer.ca.gov




























Staff Report to City Council 

City of Colfax 1 

Staff Report September 25, 2019 Policy for Annual Selection of Mayor and Mayor 
Pro Tem 

FOR THE SEPTEMBER 25, 2019 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

From: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Prepared by: Alfred A. ñMickò Cabral, City Attorney; Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Subject: Conduct Discussion and Adopt a Policy for Annual Selection of Mayor and 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Budget Impact Overview: 

N/A: Õ  Funded: Un-funded: Amount: Fund(s): 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Discuss and consider adopting a policy for annual selection of Mayor 

and Mayor Pro Tem 

Summary/Background 

The ceremonial nature of the first Colfax City Council meeting in December usually involves rotating 

the Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem chairs. To a limited extent, that process is statutory. Government Code 

§36801 requires the City Council to meet at the meeting at which the declaration of election results is

made and choose a Mayor and a Mayor pro tempore. The statute does not otherwise address selection

of a Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem in non-election years.

Government Code §36801 dictates what must be done in that a Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem must be 

selected but it does not dictate how the Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem are selected. In December 2002, the 

Colfax City Council adopted a policy whereby the rotation occurs by seniority on the Council, 

excepting those who have already served.  That policy provides, in relevant part: 

ñéthe Office of the Mayor is rotated yearly according to seniority on the Council with the 

exception of those already having served, while this Council sits.ò 

That policy was reiterated in the December 14, 2004 minutes and was written into the agenda for the 

December 12, 2006 meeting.   

The only known deviations from the policy occurred in December 2005, when a resolution was 

adopted honoring the request of the then Mayor Pro Tem not to rotate into the Mayorôs seat, and in 

2017 when Ms. Mendoza was appointed Mayor Pro Tem instead of Mr. Douglass, and in 2018 when 

Mayor Fatula was selected as Mayor instead of Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza after the November, 2018 

election .   

 The December 2002 action was only to adopt a policy, not an ordinance binding on future Councils. 

Policies by their nature provide guidance but are not binding. In the case of selection of the Mayor and 





City of Colfax 3 

Staff Report September 25, 2019 Annual Policy for Selection of Mayor and Mayor 
Pro Tem 

selection will be made at the first regular Council meeting in December provided, however, that if for 

any reason the declaration of election results is delayed beyond the first meeting in December, then the 

selection of Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem shall be made at the meeting at which the declaration of 

election results is made, and after the declaration and installation of the members elected. 

This is the process the Council will follow and the factors it will consider each time a Mayor and 

Mayor Pro Tem is selected: 

A. The Mayor Pro Tem shall be seated as Mayor.

B. The Council Member with the longest tenure on the Council since his/her most recent

election or his/her appointment, excluding the outgoing Mayor, shall be seated as Mayor Pro Tem. The 

outgoing Mayor shall be fourth in line for selection as Mayor Pro Tem. 

C. If multiple Council members have equal tenure, the selection of Mayor Pro Tem shall

be based upon the number of votes each such Council member received at his/her most recent election, 

in descending order. In this case, appointees shall be deemed to have the lowest number of votes.  

D. Council members who have served as Mayor Pro Tem or Mayor since their most recent

election or appointment to the Council shall serve as Mayor Pro Tem after Council Members who have 

not served in either position.   

FISCAL IMPACT:  

None 


	Draft Agenda 9-25-19
	00 - Agenda
	Draft Agenda 9-11-19
	Page 3 signed

	05A - Colfax Net Variance PH
	Staff Report Public Hearing for ColfaxNet Variance
	Staff Report Attachment 1
	Staff Report Attachment 2
	Attach 2 Sierra Surveys
	Attach 2a tree survey
	Attach 2b tree stake photo

	Staff Report Attachment 3
	Staff Report Attachment 4
	Staff Report Attachment 5
	Staff Report Attachment 6
	Staff Report Attachment 7
	Staff Report Attachment 8
	Staff Report Attachment 9

	06A - Minutes 9.11.19
	City Council 9-11-19 Minutes - Edited by Wes & Amy Lind
	Signature page

	06B - Cash Summary Report
	2020-02 Aug Staff Report Cash Summary .docx
	2020-02 Aug Cash Balance Graph Council report
	Attachment 2a-d

	06C - WWTP Fencing
	2019 SR WWTP_Gate_Fencing
	Resolution WWTP Gate_Fencing
	Fencing Quotes
	190925 STA-BULL Fence Company WWTP Fence

	09A - SB2 Planning Grant Program Funds
	SB 2 Planning Grant Staff Report
	190925 SB2 Planning Grant Program Resolution

	09B - Proposed Colfax Skatepark Location
	Skate Park Support Resolution Staff Report
	Skate Park Location and Fundraising Authorization Resolution
	Email from Ty
	Colfax Skatepark PowerPoint

	09C - Mayor-Mayor Pro Tem Selection

	Signature page



